
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Licensing 
Committee 

 
 
 

Councillor B E Read (Chairman) 
Councillor I D Armitt (Vice-Chairman) 

 

Councillor C Angell Councillor T Maddison 
Councillor R Bryant Councillor A R Martin 
Councillor P F Coleman Councillor J M Ozog 
Councillor D E Hunnisett Councillor R S L Perfitt 
Councillor S Johnston Councillor C J Shippam 
Councillor P Kelly Councillor Mrs N C Wightman 
Councillor E J Lampkin  
  

 
 
 
 

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on 

 
Thursday 17 February 2011 

 
at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 
 



 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE  
AGENDA 

 

Thursday 17 February 2011 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 To receive any declarations of interest Members may wish to make 
including the term(s) of the Grant of Dispensations(s) by the 
Standards Committee. 
  
 

 

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the Meeting held on 15 July 2010 
(Pages 1 - 4) 

 

4. Urgent Items   

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are any 
urgent items and their position on the agenda.  
 

 

5. Taxi Licensing Policy Review (Pages 5 - 14)  

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Licensing Committee held on Thursday 15 July 
2010. 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor B E Read (Chairman) 
Councillor Ms C Angell 
Councillor R Bryant (Shadow Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor S Johnston 
Councillor T A Maddison 
Councillor J M Ozog 
Councillor C J Shippam 
 

 
ABSENT: 
 

Councillor I D Armitt JP 
Councillor P F Coleman 
Councillor D E Hunnisett 
Councillor P Kelly 
Councillor E J Lampkin 
Councillor A R Martin 
Councillor R S L Perfitt 
Councillor Mrs N C Wightman 
 

 
 

20. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors I D Armitt, P F 
Coleman, D E Hunnisett, P Kelly, E J Lampkin, A R Martin, R S L Perfitt and 
Mrs N C Wightman. 
 

21. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest received. 
 

22. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES HELD ON 29 MARCH 2010  
 
  RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes from the meeting held on 29 March 2010 be confirmed. 
 

23. URGENT ITEMS  
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

24. DRAFT TAXI LICENSING POLICY  
 
The report sought the adoption of the draft Taxi Licensing Policy following 
consultation with interested parties which was approved by the Licensing 
Committee at its meeting held on 29 March 2010 [Min. 19]. 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 15 JULY 2010 
 
 

2 

The Senior Licensing Officer explained that the consultation was carried out in 
accordance with national guidance.  Copies were available at the Civic 
Centre, libraries and sent to all Operators with 2 or more drivers and to both 
Hackney Carriage trade associations.  It was also available on the Council’s 
website. 
 
She advised that the Department for Transport (DfT) issued Best Practice 
Guidance to assist Local Authorities, however it was for each authority of 
create their own policies from this guidance.  The Council had recently 
introduced separate  polices for Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles, for example, 
on Disability Discrimination Act training, and it was decided to produce a 
comprehensive policy incorporating all the separate polices and the DfT 
Revised Best Practise Guidance.  
 
Members asked Officers what the main areas of concern were raised during 
consultation. 
 
The Senior Licensing Officer explained that all the comments received during 
the consultation period had been considered and were included within the 
report.  She assured Members that where possible comments had been taken 
on board and the policy amended accordingly.  The greatest concern was 
raised with the introduction of the penalty point system.    
 
She explained to Members how complaints against drivers were currently 
handled.  It had been recognised by Officer that there was a need to deal with 
all complaints in a consistent and transparent manner.  The policy would still 
see the same investigations into complaints currently undertaken, but a 
consistent penalty applied, and the right to appeal if the driver felt it was 
unfair. 
 
Clarification was sought on the trade involvement of drafting the policy 
document. 
 
The Officer advised that the policy was written taking into account other 
adopted Council policies and the guidance from the Department for Transport.  
Consideration was also given to similar polices from other authorities in Kent, 
so that there was a consistent approach across the county.  At the time of 
drafting the document, the DTA was not operating and the DDA had not been 
formed.   They did however have the opportunity to be consulted on the 
policy. 
 
Members asked about the cost of monitoring the penalty scheme and sought 
explanation of the comment in the report that this was a ‘living document’.  
There was general agreement that the document should be reviewed within a 
year of its introduction to see how it was working. 
 
Members were advised that if adopted, the policy would be reviewed every 
three years in line with the procedures in place for other policy documents.  
However, as it was a new policy based on developing guidance; Officers 
would seek a review within the first year.  Members were assured that the 

Agenda Item 3 Page 2



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 15 JULY 2010 
 
 

3 

cost of the penalty point system would be covered within current budgets.  
Officers were already completing full investigation of complaints and the 
computer software already in place could facilitate a penalty point function. 
 
An explanation was sought on the requirement for a driver to be over 21 years 
old, and would an applicant lose their fee if they were found not to have clear 
spoken English. 
 
The Officer advised that the requirement for a driver to be over 21 had been in 
place for some time.  This was a requirement to ensure that drivers were 
mature and also that they could take out the required insurance. 
 
There had been an increase in the number of foreign applicants and Officers 
wanted to ensure that they had an understanding of spoken English.  This 
would be indentified early in the application process, and if necessary, a 
language test could be undertaken prior to taking the knowledge test.  
Therefore, no cost would be incurred by the applicant. 
 
The Chairman drew Members attention to the recommendation set out within 
the report.   
 
Due to a disturbance in the public gallery, the Chairman reminded the people 
observing the meeting that they were unable to address the Committee. 
 
Members sought clarification that if the document was adopted, when it would 
come into operation. 
 
The Senior Licensing Officer advised that new drivers, or those registering a 
new vehicle, would start working to the policy on 1 August 2010.  For current 
licensing holders there would be a three months probation period for 
compliance. 
 
At this point in the meeting there was a disturbance in the public gallery.  The 
Chairman advised that they were interrupting the proceedings of the meeting.  
In accordance with Standing Order 18 - Disorderly Conduct, the Chairman 
asked them to stop interrupting and to behave properly.  He advised that if 
they continued to interrupt the proceedings they would be asked to leave the 
chamber. 
 
The Chairman reminded the Committee that the document had been out to 
public consultation.  He commented on the low number of complaints that had 
been received in the past against drivers and did not see that the introduction 
of a penalty point system would affect drivers. 
 
He thanked those members of the public who had responded to the 
consultation. 
 
It was moved and duly seconded that the policy be adopted, subject to an 
additional condition that the policy be reviewed within a year of its full 
introduction.  Upon being put to the vote it was carried. 

Agenda Item 3Page 3



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 15 JULY 2010 
 
 

4 

 
  RESOLVED: 
 
(1) That the consultation responses to the amended draft Taxi Licensing 

Policy and Officer responses at Appendix A to the report be noted. 

(2) That the draft Taxi Licensing Policy at Appendix B to the report be 
adopted. 

 
(3) That the Taxi Licensing Policy be reviewed one year after its full 

introduction. 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 7.50 pm 
 
  

 
 

Councillor B E Read 
CHAIRMAN 

Agenda Item 3 Page 4



 
LICENSING COMMITTEE 

17 FEBRUARY 2011 
 

HACKNEY CARRIAGE & PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING POLICY REVIEW 
 
 
1. Summary 
 

1.1. To propose amendments to the Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing 
Policy adopted by the Council in 2010.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1. That the amendments to the Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing 

Policy listed in the Table at Appendix A to the report, be adopted. 

 

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
3.1. The current Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy was adopted on 15 

July 2010 [Min No 24 ], and brought into effect once published on 1st  September 
2010. The Committee recommended that the Policy be reviewed in 12 months. 
Since the adoption of the Policy, the Equality Act 2010 has come into force (the 
2010 Act).  

3.2. The 2010 Act repeals, consolidates and harmonises 40 years’ worth of anti-
discrimination legislation and strengthens the law in a number of areas.  

3.3. A new public sector equality duty (from 6 April 2011) is created by the 2010 Act, 
which requires local authorities when carrying out their functions, to have due 
regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation, the 
need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
‘protected characteristic’ (i.e. age, disability, gender, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion and belief and sexual orientation) and 
those who do not; and the need to foster good relations between people who share 
a relevant ‘protected characteristic’ and people who do not.  The practical effect is 
that local authorities must consider how their policies, programmes and service 
delivery will affect people with ‘protected characteristics’.  

3.4. Sections 160 to 173 of the 2010 Act relate specifically to taxis and PHV.  Sections 
165, 166 and 167 deal with the imposition of duties on the drivers of wheelchair 
accessible taxis and PHV to assist passengers who use wheelchairs.  Some of 
these Sections are either fully in force, partially in force or pending. 

3.5. Case law has established that public sector bodies should analyse the potential 
effect on equality when they start to develop or review a policy and continue 
throughout, informing policy design and final decision-making. 

3.6. The implementation of the 2010 Act and the new public sector equality duty 
requires the Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy to be amended 
ahead of the recommended 12 month review date, to ensure the incorporation of 

Agenda Item 5Page 5



 
LICENSING COMMITTEE 

17 FEBRUARY 2011 
 
the disability awareness training measures adopted by the Committee in 2008, but 
omitted in error from the Policy, when adopted in July 2010.  

3.7. The opportunity is also taken to correct typographical errors, clarify anomalies and 
update the information on the Council’s website.  For ease of reference and 
expediency, only those appendices requiring amendments are referred to the 
Committee for adoption.  The remainder of the Policy is as adopted on 15 July 
2010.  

3.8. A table of all amendments made, referencing the old and new text or numbering is 
as set out in Appendix A to this report.  A copy of the current Hackney Carriage & 
Private Hire Licensing Policy prior to the proposed amendments, can be accessed 
via www.dartford.gov.uk/licensing/taxilicensing 

3.9. The Committee is recommended to adopt the amendments referred to in Appendix 
A to the report. 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
 Safer Communities. 
 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications None 

Legal Implications The production of the Policy is not currently a 
statutory requirement    

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications Already in place  

Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints 

  
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 Not applicable  

 
7. Appendix 
  

 A - Table of Amendments 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date /File 
Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

Department of Transport 
Taxi and Private Hire 
Vehicle Licensing Best 
Practice Guide. 
The Equalities Act 2010 

28 
January 
2011 

Gloria Knight – 
Licensing Officer 
Vehicle  
(01322) 343340 

Licensing - 
Strategic. 

 
N/A 

 

Agenda Item 5 Page 6



APPENDIX A 

 

TABLE OF AMENDMENTS MADE TO THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE  & 
PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING POLICY 

 
Original Original Text New Ref: NEW TEXT REASON 

N/A N/A 1.1.2  
 The Equality Act 2010 

New piece of 
legislation 
From October 
2010 
 

 

 

 

 

 

N/A 2.22.4 Grant and renewal of licenses will also 
be dependent on other factors i.e. a 
change in legislation or relevant 
guidance is published after adoption of 
this policy introducing new conditions or 
criteria to be met that is not contained 
within this policy. The policy will be 
updated on these requirement at the next 
review date, although requirements will 
be introduced immediately for legislative 
changes and at earliest opportunity for 
recommended practice where 
considered appropriate.     
  

Legislative 
changes must 
be introduced 
on start date 
as in above 
new 
legislation.   
 
Although 
official 
guidance is 
not 
mandatory, if 
it is best 
practice it 
should when it 
can, be 
adopted at 
earliest 
opportunity.  
 

2.6.3 Failure to present a 6 
month MOT certificate 
within 21 days of its 
due date will result in 
the vehicle licence 
being suspended 
automatically.  

2.6.3 
Failure to present the vehicle and a 6 
month MOT certificate for inspection 
within 21 days of its due date will result 
in the vehicle licence being suspended 
automatically.  

 

The vehicle is 
also required 
to be 
inspected but 
is not explicit 
in original text. 

2.6.3  
(part) 

 2.6.4  Original 
paragraph 
2.6.3 split for 
clarity to 
emphasise 
that non 
compliance to 
this 
requirement 
could result in 
the vehicle not 
being licensed 
due to not 
meeting the 

Agenda Item 5Page 7



age criteria 

2.6.4  2.6.5 Statutory purposes relates to MOT 
testing, fault finding and any necessary 
associated road testing that is being 
undertaken by a qualified vehicle 
mechanic utilising a trade plate that 
clearly indicates the vehicle is not at that 
time acting as a licensed vehicle. 

 

This 
addendum 
was added to 
the website 
after queries 
were received.  
It has now 
been added to 
the main body 
of the policy.  

2.6.4 to 
2.6.13 

 2.6.5  
to 
2.6.14 

 Numbering 
changed due 
to splitting 
2.6.3 into 
2.6.3 & 2.6.4  

 

 

 

N/A N/A 3.1.6 The Licensing Authority adopted a 
policy in 2007 and also endorsed by 
the DfT in The Guidance that all drivers 
must undertake Disability Awareness 
training. This requirement has not been 
changed.     New driver applicants will 
also be required to undertake suitable 
disability awareness training within 12 
months of grant of first licence or 
provide evidence of an acceptable 
certificate from another training 
provider.  Existing drivers must 
undertake a course on being invited.  If 
there is a mitigating factor that prevents 
attendance at the first invite, a second 
invite will be issued.  Failure to attend 
the second invite may lead to 
suspension or non renewal of the 
licence until such training has been 
undertaken.  This is in line with the 
Equality Act 2010  
 

The policy was 
an 
amalgamation 
of all existing 
policies but 
this had been 
omitted.  It 
was originally 
adopted in 
2008. 

6.3.1 …… 

The decision to 
suspend may be taken 
by any authorised 
Licensing Officer.   
 

6.3.1 ……… 
 Para extract 

 
The Licensing Authority may exercise 
its discretion to suspend the operation 
of a driver’s licence for a specified 
period if there is immediate danger to 
the public safety.  
 

The decision to suspend may be taken 
by any Licensing Officer with 

 

Reasoning 
only provided 
for suspension 
of vehicles but 
not provided 
for suspension 
of drivers 
licence  
 
Wording 

Agenda Item 5 Page 8



appropriate delegated powers.   
 

changed for 
clarification 
where officers 
have 
delegated 
powers for 
certain 
functions 
rather than 
authorisation. 

6.4.2 ….    revocation or 
suspension of the 
licence may be made 
by any authorised 
Licensing Officer, 
Strategic Director or 
the Licensing 
Committee.   
 

6.3.2 ……..    
Para extract 

 
revocation or suspension of the licence 
may be made by any Licensing Officer, 
Strategic Director or the Licensing 
Committee with appropriate delegated 
powers.   
 

Wording 
changed for 
clarification 
where officers 
have 
delegated 
powers for 
certain 
functions 
rather than 
authorisation. 
 
Numbering 
wrongly 
changed on 
conversion to 
pdf – 
corrected 

6.4.2 to 
6.4.4 

Changes as above 6.3.2 to 
6.3.4 

Changes as above Numbering 
wrongly 
changed on 
conversion to 
pdf – 
corrected 
 
 
 
 
 

7. The relevant offences 
under the 1847 Act, 
the 1976 and the 1980 
Act are set out in 
APPENDICES K and 
P. 
 

7. Edited text to include “private hire” as 
well as hackney carriage. 
 
Edited text to read  Appendices K & Q. 

This section 
gave the 
appearance 
only hackney 
carriage 
offences were 
considered 
where the 
reference to 
private hire is 
not included. 
 
In checking 
the 

Agenda Item 5Page 9



Appendices K 
& P, it was 
found that  R 
is a copy of 
the byelaws 
not P. 

 APPENDIX A  VEHICL AGE & OTHER 

SPECIFICATIONS 

 

  HC16 It carries within the vehicle a first aid kit. Omission 
PH8 It carries within the 

vehicle a first aid kit. 
PH14 Changed reference number only In “suitability” 

section, 
should be in 
“additional 
conditions of 
fitness 

PH9 No change to text PH8  Changed due 
to move of 
PH8 into 
different 
section 

Page 32  Stretch Limousine 
additional conditions   
page 4) 

 Should be (SEE PAGE 4) 

 
Is correct in 
word version. 
Conversion to 
pdf error for 
web version 
and print 
order. 
 
 

SL4 Para extract 

 

…….. 

programme (VIN plate 
number will start 1L1 
for Millennium and 
later models) ……… 
 

 Para extract 

 
…… 
programme (VIN plate number will start 
1L1 or 1LM for Millennium and later 
models) or the Cadillac Master 
Coachbuilder qualification. 
 

Additional 
information 
received that 
1LM is also a 
recognised 
VIN marking 
for an 
approved 
conversion. 

 APPENDIX B  HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLE LICENCE 
CONDITIONS 

 

B12 The Licensing 
Authority will agree to 
transfer the licence 
upon being satisfied as 
to suitability of the 
vehicle and after 
examination of the 
following: 
 

B12 The Licensing Authority will agree to 
transfer the licence upon being satisfied that 
the suitability of  
the vehicle (to include the additional 
conditions of fitness) is met  and production 
of the following:…… 
 

This sentence 
only referred 
to the 
suitability of 
the vehicle 
plus 
documents 
but the 
additional 
fitness criteria 
must be met 
at time of 

Agenda Item 5 Page 10



transfer of 
licence.   

B16 The vehicle shall be 
fitted with an 
illuminated device 
visible from the 
nearside of the vehicle 
bearing the words 
“FOR HIRE” in an 
easily distinguishable 
manner. The device 
shall be capable of 
being placed in such a 
position or condition, 
that the words thereon 
are conveniently 
legible when the 
vehicle is hired. The 
sign shall be 
illuminated when the 
vehicle is for hire only. 
 

B16 The vehicle shall be fitted with an 
illuminated device visible from the 
nearside of the vehicle bearing the words 
“FOR HIRE” in an easily distinguishable 
manner. The device shall be capable of 
being placed in such a position or 
condition, that the words thereon are 
conveniently legible when the vehicle is 
available for hire. The sign shall be 
electronically linked to turn off when the 
vehicle is hired. 
 

The wording 
needed to 
reflect better 
that  the sign 
“FOR HIRE”  
is only visible 
when 
available for 
hire. 
Reworded for 
clarity.  

B3 The proprietor shall 
cause to be displayed 
in the vehicle in such a 
position to be visible at 
all times to persons 
conveyed therein, a 
current appropriate 
certificate of insurance. 
 

B3 Insert word driver next to proprietor Omission - 
Not all 
vehicles are 
driven by the 
proprietor.  
Both have a 
responsibility 
to ensure 
there is 
insurance on 
display where 
proprietor 
leases out 
vehicle.  

 APPENDIX C  PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE 

CONDITIONS 

 

C11 A proprietor shall give 
reasonable notice to 
the Licensing Authority 
of his/her intention to 
transfer this licence to 
another vehicle and 
shall not permit that 
vehicle to be hire until 
it has been licensed. 
 
 

N/A DELETED Duplication of 
points in C11 
& C12. 

C12 The Licensing 
Authority will agree to 
transfer the licence 

C11 Para extract 

 
The Licensing Authority will agree to 

This sentence 
only referred 
to the 

Agenda Item 5Page 11



upon being satisfied as 
to suitability of the 
vehicle and after 
examination of the 
following: 
 

transfer the licence upon being satisfied 
that the suitability of the vehicle (to 
include the additional conditions of 
fitness) is met and production of the 
following:…… 
 
 

suitability of 
the vehicle 
plus 
documents 
but the 
additional 
fitness criteria 
must be met 
at time of 
transfer of 
licence.   
 

 C13 -17 N/A C12 -16 N/A Numbering 
changed due 
to deletion of 
a para. 

 APPENDIX  K  PENALTY POINTS SCHEME 

 

 

List  
 
No 52 

Failure to attend on 
time for a pre-arranged  
booking without 
reasonable cause. 
 
  
Category - Driver 

 Failure to attend on time for a pre-
arranged appointment at the request of 
the Licensing Authority for interview 
without reasonable cause. 
 
 
 
Category – Operator & Driver 

For 
clarification – 
to distinguish 
between 
missed 
appointments 
made by the 
licensee and 
those made 
for 
enforcement 
purposes. 
 
Amend the 
categories to 
include 
Operator in 
addition to 
Driver. 

List no 
57  

Operating/using a 
vehicle that is in a safe 
condition internally or 
externally. 

 Operating/using a vehicle that is not in a 
safe condition internally or externally. 
 

Insert the 
word “not” 
which had 
been omitted 
and changed 
completely the 
context of the 
sentence. 

List  
 
No 62 

Sounding the horn late 
at night to signal that 
the vehicle has arrived. 
disturbing residents 

 Sounding the horn to signal that the 
vehicle has arrived causing a disturbance 
to other  residents 

Wording 
amended to 
better reflect 
the highway 
code 
requirements 
for 

Agenda Item 5 Page 12



clarification. 
List  
 
No 81 

Failure to carry a first 
aid kit for personal use 
that has been 
approved by the 
Vehicle Licensing 
Officer. 

 Failure to carry a first aid kit for personal 
use that has been approved by the 
Licensing Authority. 

This should be 
the Licensing 
Authority 
allowing any 
officer with 
delegated 
powers to 
undertake the 
inspection. 

 

Agenda Item 5Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the Meeting held on 15 July 2010
	5 Taxi Licensing Policy Review
	Appendix A.Table of Amendments Report on Draft Taxi Licensing for LC 17.2.2011


